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​ 16 Jerome Road has always been a desirable place to live, with its sweeping water view and in a 
prestigious part of the city. The neighborhood was developed by Benjamin Willis Jerome, of an old New 
London family. He was developer of mixed success (see appendix) and proprietor of nearby Osprey 
Beach before moving to Indian River, Florida.  
 

The house is a fine gambrel roof Colonial Revival, with classic shoreline details like shingles and 
a prominent beach stone chimney. It is well sited to take advantage of the water view.  
 
​ Jerome had several land transactions with Charles Oscar Brewster, who bought the land and 
likely built the house. Brewster was from an old Stonington whaling family, an active member of 
Oddfellows, and made many contributions, both monetary and volunteer labor, to area cemeteries. Here is 
one transaction they had nearby and contemporary with the sale of 16 Jerome. Brewster’s July 1912 death 
likely precipitated the property sale later that month. 
 

 
 
​ The next owner of 16 Jerome was Lydia Lawrence, or, in the parlance of the time, Mrs. Henry 
Lawrence. The 1919 City Directory lists her as a “homemaker” but she was out of the home very often. 
She was a very busy local socialite and the paper reported frequently on her attendance at parties, benefits 
and social gatherings of all kinds. Many games of bridge were played by Mrs. Lawrence. Her world-wide 
travels were noted in detail greater than we would likely allow now, unless self-posted on social media..



. 

 
 Fifty years later, her socializing was still remembered in The Day. 

 



 
Even her hospitalizations were reported. 
 

 
 
And finally: her death and the dispersal of her estate in 1927. Her estate was reported by The Day to total 
$4378.89 (which is $79,380 in today’s dollars), rather devalued from the 1916 Grand List (taxable) 
number of $8800. 
 



 
 

Dr. Daniel and Harriet Sullivan bought the property in 1927. He was listed as a surgeon and 
maintained an office at 58 Huntington Avenue. They owned for only 2 years. Sullivan was very active in 
medical circles and served as a trustee of Lawrence Hospital. Here he is during WW2, working on the 

home front.  
 

Anna Daniell bought the property in 1929. Her husband, Jeremiah, is listed as a mechanical 
engineer. He is one of many city residents who contributed to the 1914 fund to construct the YMCA 
downtown. Daniell was evidently fond of sea bathing, as evidenced by his statement during public debate 
about how to handle the local beaches after the devastation of the 1938 hurricane. 
 



 
 

Ida B. Kaufman bought 16 Jerome in 1934, at the height of the Depression. The 1935 City Grand 
List showed the property was worth $33,563 (almost $800k now). Dr. Charles Kaufman was a physician 
with an office in room 306 of the Dewart Building at 302 State Street. He was the Chief of Surgery at 
Lawrence and Memorial and also the house physician at the upscale Mohican Hotel, just across the street 
from his office building. The 1940 Census lists him as being in private practice. When Kaufman died in 
1959 at 29 Mott Avenue, his estate totaled $182,612.34, over $1.9M now. 

 
 
 
The Kaufmans were the long-time owners, holding until 1959. Their tenure was rather rocky, with plenty 
of drama that made the papers.  
 
Ida (née Slosberg) registered to vote in 1922, at 21 and only two years after women were granted suffrage, 
when she was living at 314 Montauk Avenue. Her attendance at numerous social events were noted in the 
paper all through the ‘Thirties. Also noted in the paper were numerous car accidents and at least one 
resultant lawsuit, which must have been rather embarrassing to a couple of their social standing.  

 
 
 



 
 
A 1952 theft report is a little bizarre. Hard to imagine thieves targeting table linens.  
 

 
 
 
The Kaufmans raised three children in the house (Gloria, Barbara and Michael) and, at the time of the 
1940 census, had a live-in “servant” named Wilma King (a 27 year old white divorcée from Stonington). 
And no wonder she needed help: this was quite a party to host! 



 
 
 
Behind the scenes, there was trouble that continued until their 1957 divorce. 

 
 
Ida was also a business owner. She had a clothing store on the corner of Broad and Williams that she 
called helen barrett, inc.(Very e e cummings:  her lack of capitalization, not mine). The store advertised at 
least weekly and the advertisements are perfect time capsules.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



This is my favorite: featuring her made-up word infant-icipating. 

 
 
The City Directory lists the house as vacant from 1960-1963, while it was owned by a Helene Brunings of 
New York City. 
 
Colvert and Elizabeth Moore bought the house in 1967. The Moores ran Eastern Chemical Service* and 
Aardvark Termite Service. *This 1964 ad is rather self-agrandizing because it states that Eastern 
Chemical Service is a “division of Eastern Chemical Service,” when it is perhaps the only division of the 
same company. Elizabeth’s obituary proudly noted that she was “the only woman in the state of 
Connecticut to hold pest control licenses” when they started the company. 
 

 
 
This would have been a fun conference, especially the panel of Resistant Insects. And then there’s the 
discussion of ectoparasitic control at another industry conference.  



 
The Moores raised their four children in the house and the children must have felt strong ties to the 
neighborhood because one daughter married a neighbor and at the Pequot Chapel. (New London’s current 
mayor was the best man– a good connection to have!) 
 

 



Speaking of good connections: that is Mr. Moore with Senator Prescott Bush, father and grandfather to 
presidents. 
 
In 2014, Susan Cole Stone and Barton Russell bought the property. Cole is a landscape watercolorist who 
has exhibited many times in the area and maintained a studio in Westerly RI. Russell was the Director of 
the CT Council of Small Towns (COST). Here are two of Cole’s works. 

 
 
They held for only a matter of months before Javier and Elizabeth Rocio bought it for $660,000 in 2014.  
 
Nanci and Robert DeRobbio bought the property in 2017. 

---------------------------------- 
 
Prepared in January 2025 by Alicia Primer for New London Landmarks, using the title research provided 
by Tom Couser. 
 
Information sourced from New London City Directories, newspaper.com and ancestry.com 
 
Historian Mary Beth Baker added the following information on developer Benjamin Jerome. 
 
Benjamin Willis Jerome (1851-1906) was a wealthy, land-rich young man, descendant of generations of 
Jeromes in New London. In 1891 he married the well-healed Sarah Hathaway of Suffield, Connecticut. 
Benjamin was the owner of the old Jerome homestead (1705) [939 Pequot Avenue] and much else. The 
old homestead had been owned by some Benjamin Jerome or other for generations. This patrimony 
included what Benjamin Willis Jerome named Osprey Beach, which he developed as a resort with the 
help of business partners, much to the dismay of the Pequot Colonists who disliked the noisy day-trippers 
it drew to New London’s fashionable south end. Osprey Beach was successful for a couple of years and 
then failed. It was purchased by locals who did not want to see it developed in such a way again. 
Benjamin Willis moved to Indian River, Florida, “where he built a fine property” and grew oranges. 
Benjamin and Sarah reportedly spent winters in West Palm Beach (long before it was a resort) and 
summers in New London. City Directories list him on Ocean Avenue (his parents’ estate there), though he 
supposedly lived in the old homestead during the summer. The will of Benjamin’s father, Richard M. 
Jerome (Vol 1-2, 1852-1907, NL), who died in 1900, indicates that he had concerns about Benjamin’s 
ability to manage his legacy. Thus, everything was left in trust to be administered by attorney, Belton A. 
Copp. Further, the income from the trust did not go to Benjamin himself, but rather to his wife, Sarah. 
 



 
 


